
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The April 21, 2015 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to order by 6 
Village President Dave Lienau at 6:34 P.M.   7 
 8 
Present:  President Lienau and Trustees John Clove, Shane Solomon, Pat Duffy, Scott Baker, 9 
Kathy Enquist, and Nora Zacek.    10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, 12 
Marketing Director Jason Polecheck and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 13 
 14 
Others:   Rob Zoschke and Pat Judy 15 
 16 
Approval of the Agenda and Minutes as published: 17 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the Agenda for the April 21, 2015 18 
meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion carried 19 
– All ayes. 20 
  21 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the minutes for the March 30, 2015 22 
meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion carried 23 
– All ayes. 24 
 25 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the minutes for the April 10, 2015 26 
special meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees be approved as presented. Motion 27 
carried – All ayes. 28 
 29 
Comments and correspondence: 30 
Lienau read a letter from Bud Kalms, the Clerk/Administrator for the Town of Liberty Grove, 31 
aloud. In that letter Kalms states that the members of the Town Board believe it would be best 32 
for them and the members of the Village Board to meet without Administrators or Consultants 33 
present in an attempt to resolve the issues associated with the Wastewater Treatment Plant 34 
ownership issue prior to going to mediation, as that course of action can be very costly and 35 
time consuming. Lienau indicated that he would like to suggest that at least initially he and 36 
John Lowry, the Chair of the Town, meet to discuss the logistical issues associated with the 37 
Town Board’s suggestions, and it was the consensus that a letter of response to that effect shall 38 
be sent to Kalms. Jackson was asked to see that such a letter is drafted and provided to Lienau 39 
for signing ASAP. 40 
 41 
Jackson introduced Jason Polecheck, the new Marketing Director. The Board members 42 
welcomed Polecheck and indicated that they look forward to working with him. 43 
 44 
Lienau asked if anyone in the audience wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No 45 
one responded. 46 
 47 
 48 
 49 

2



Minutes for the April 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 
 

 

-2- 

Item No. 1. Consider a motion to grant a pro-rated Class B Beer and Class C Wine License to 1 
Sara Zacek of Harbor Pie Company: 2 
At 6:41 P.M. Zacek and Solomon recused themselves due to a potential conflict of interest. 3 
 4 
Sara Zacek will be operating Harbor Pie Company at 10647 N. Bay Shore Drive. On April 8, 5 
2015 she submitted an application for a two month pro-rated Class B Beer/Class C Wine 6 
License, and a copy of that application and supporting documentation was included in the 7 
meeting packets.  8 
 9 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy that the Village Board grants a pro-rated 10 
Class B Beer and Class C Wine License to Sara Zacek, d/b/a Harbor Pie Company, which 11 
business is located at 10647 N. Bay Shore Drive. Motion carried – All ayes. 12 
 13 
At 6:42 P.M. Zacek and Solomon resumed their duties and returned to the table. 14 
 15 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to authorize staff to execute a five year lease agreement with 16 
the U.S. Postal Service for the property located at 10693 N. Bay Shore Drive: 17 
The Sister Bay Post Office is currently housed in the building located at 10693 N. Bay Shore 18 
Drive, and that building is owned by the Village. Postal Service representatives have indicated 19 
that they are interested in renewing the Post Office Lease, and a copy of a proposed Lease as 20 
well as a proposed Commission Agreement with CBRE were included in the meeting packets. 21 
The Village currently receives $16,200 annually from the U.S. Postal Service for rent, and if the 22 
new Lease is approved annual revenues of $17,152 will be realized. The new Lease would be 23 
in effect from March 1, 2016 through February 28, 2021. 24 
 25 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that the Village Board authorizes staff and/or 26 
the Village President to execute lease and commission documents on behalf of the Village of 27 
Sister Bay. That Lease will be in effect from March 1, 2016 through February 28, 2021, and the 28 
annual rent shall be $17,152.00. Motion carried – All ayes. 29 
 30 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding amendment of the 2015 Budget for the Village of Sister Bay 31 
in such fashion that a special revenue fund is created for special events; and consider a 32 
motion for action if necessary: 33 
Polecheck has been charged with coordinating non-SBAA sponsored special events which take 34 
place in the Village in order to promote Sister Bay as a “destination”. In the past funds for 35 
promoting and paying for expenses related to special events such as the Car Show, Marina Fest 36 
and the New Year’s Eve Fireworks Show were withdrawn from the General Fund, the Marina 37 
Fund, the Ice Rink Fund and the CIP Fund. More large events are being planned for 2015, and 38 
the members of the Marketing Committee believe creation of a Special Events Special Revenue 39 
Fund would allow for better tracking of revenues and expenses related to each of the events the 40 
Village does sponsor. The question arose as to who will actually be responsible for oversight of 41 
the Special Events Fund, and it was the consensus that depending upon what festival or special 42 
event is actually conducted, the responsibility will lie with the Finance Committee, the Marina 43 
Committee, the Marina Fest Executive Committee, the Parks Committee, and/or the Marketing 44 
Committee . A set of Village sponsored event By-Laws will be created, and in that document(s) 45 
the oversight Committee for each of the festivals or special events the Village sponsors will be 46 
clearly delineated in accord with the Board’s directives. The Village’s Auditor has indicated that 47 
creation of a special revenue fund for the previously mentioned purpose is unique, but he 48 
would not be opposed to creation of it. Further, if new sub-accounts are created it would be 49 
possible to track revenues and expenses related to each of the previously mentioned festivals 50 

3



Minutes for the April 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 
 

 

-3- 

and special events. Hopefully the $50,000 which was allocated for new special events will 1 
eventually be replaced by sponsorships, and at the end of the year it may be necessary for 2 
Village officials to authorize some line item transfers. 3 
  4 
If the Board does authorize creation of a Special Events Fund, Jackson is suggesting: 5 
  6 

A.   That $5,000.00 be transferred from the General Fund to the Special Events Fund;  7 
B.   That $33,500.00, ($15,000 for wages and $18,500 for Marina Fest), be 8 

transferred from the Marina Fund to the Special Events Fund;  9 
C.   That $9,100.00, ($4,100 for wages and $5,000 for events), be transferred from 10 

the Ice Rink Fund to the Special Events Fund; and,  11 
D. That the $50,000 which was budgeted for special events in 2015 - $17,500 of 12 

which will cover wages, be transferred.from the CIP Fund to the Special Events 13 
Fund.) 14 
 15 

Clove indicated that be believes the transfer from the Marina Fund should actually be 16 
$25,000 as the Marina Fest allocation should only be $10,000.00.  17 
 18 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the 19 
recommendation of the Marketing Committee and authorizes the establishment of a Special 20 
Events Special Revenue Fund within the 2015 Village of Sister Bay Budget on the condition that 21 
oversight of the fund shall be provided by the committees who are identified in the Special 22 
Events By-Laws.The previously mentioned transfers shall all be made, but the $18,500 23 
allocation for Marina Fest shall be changed to $10,000.00. Motion carried – All ayes.   24 
 25 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to confirm and appoint President Lienau’s nomination of 26 
qualified citizens to fill vacancies on Committees, Commissions or Boards for the Village of 27 
Sister Bay: 28 
Lienau indicated that he would not be recommending any Committee appointments at this 29 
meeting. Annual committee and commission appointments will be made at the May Village 30 
Board meeting. 31 
 32 
Item No. 8. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 33 
Lienau gave the following oral report regarding Door County activities: 34 

 The County Board has approved the expenditure of $2,000,000 for the construction of a 35 
County Human Resources/Senior Center. A “Friends of the Human Resources/Senior 36 
Center” group will be created, and that group will solicit and accept donations for the 37 
construction project and related amenities. 38 

  Work is ongoing on the 2016 budget for Door County. 39 

  The Administrative Committee will be reviewing and considering applications which 40 
have been submitted for the County Administrator position. 41 

  Applications are now being accepted for the County Finance Director position.   42 
 43 
Item No. 10. Report from the Village Administrator on various actions: 44 
To date a tremendous amount of work has been done on the Beach Project. Overtime has now 45 
been authorized, and from this point forward the project should proceed very quickly. DNR 46 
officials informed Jackson and Lienau that a citation will be issued to the Village for a permit 47 
violation, and a hearing will be required. The Village is contending that no violations occurred, 48 
but depending on what happens at the hearing it may be necessary for the Village to apply for 49 

4



Minutes for the April 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 
 

 

-4- 

an after-the-fact permit. Jackson and Lienau will keep the Board members advised of the status 1 
of this issue.  2 
 3 
Jackson gave the following oral report: 4 
 5 

 Street Lighting/Line Burial: 6 
Work is ongoing on the Line Burial Project. The Village was not privy to contract 7 
negotiations which were done between the contractor and Wisconsin Public Service, 8 
but Jackson has been informed that the contractor working on the project was not 9 
required to do site restoration work such as application of black dirt and seeding. 10 
Therefore, the Parks Department employees will be doing that work. 11 
  12 

   Work is steadily progressing on the sledding hill, and when it is done it will be very 13 
nice. 14 
 15 

Item No. 9. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve the 16 
monthly bills: 17 
Payment Approval Reports for the period April 1, 2015 through April 21, 2015 were included 18 
in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed those documents.  19 
 20 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the monthly bills depicted on the reports 21 
which were included in the meeting packets totaling $718,633.74 are all approved. Motion 22 
carried – All ayes. 23 
 24 
At 8:11 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 8:20 P.M. 25 
 26 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats.,  27 
§19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel, who either orally or in writing will advise the 28 
governmental body of strategy to be adopted with respect to current or likely litigation: 29 
At 8:21 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village Board convene 30 
into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(g) to confer with legal counsel, who 31 
either orally or in writing will advise the governmental body of strategy to be adopted with 32 
respect to current or likely litigation. A roll call vote was taken on the motion and the Board 33 
members voted in the following fashion: 34 
                     Baker  – Aye;  Clove  – Aye;  Duffy – Aye; 35 
  Lienau – Aye;   Enquist – Aye;  Solomon  – Aye;   36 
      Zacek – Aye. 37 
Motion carried. 38 
 39 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session: 40 
At 8:40 P.M. a motion was made by Lienau seconded by Baker that the Board reconvene into 41 
Open Session. A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the Board members again voted in 42 
the following fashion: 43 
 44 
 45 
  Baker  – Aye;  Clove  – Aye;  Duffy – Aye; 46 
  Lienau – Aye;  Enquist – Aye;  Solomon – Aye;   47 
      Zacek – Aye. 48 
Motion carried. 49 

5



Minutes for the April 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 
 

 

-5- 

Item No. 6. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 1 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Duffy that the Village Board disallows he claim 2 
of Chicago Public Schools Benefit Plan on behalf of Ryan Krikorian which is dated February 25, 3 
2015. Motion carried – All ayes.  4 

      5 
Committee Reports: 6 
(1) Administrative Committee: 7 
          The Administrative Committee has not met recently. 8 

 9 
(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee: 10 
           The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee has not met recently. 11 

 12 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee: 13 
           The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently. 14 
    15 
(4)  Door County Coastal Byways Commission: 16 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. Work is 17 

ongoing on obtaining a national Scenic Byways designation. 18 
 19 
(5)  DCEDC: 20 

 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The 21 
Industry and Entrepreneur of the Year will be announced soon.  22 

 23 
(6)  Economic Development Committee: 24 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The 25 

Committee will not be meeting again until October 21, 2015. 26 
 27 
(7)  Finance Committee: 28 

 The Finance Committee has not met recently. A meeting has been scheduled to review 29 
the Village’s 2014 audit. As many of the Board members as possible will attend that 30 
meeting, which is scheduled for 8:30 A.M. on May 1, 2015.  31 

 32 
(8)  Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 33 
 No action based on the Fire Board Minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 34 
 35 
 The Fire District Exploratory Committee has not met recently. 36 
 37 
(9)  Historical Society: 38 
 The Historical Society Board of Directors met in April but those minutes have not been 39 

completed yet. 40 
 41 
(10)  Library Commission: 42 

No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. Gary 43 
Farber will be replacing Frank Forkert as the Town representative on the Library 44 
Commission. 45 

 46 
(11)   Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 47 

The Marina Committee and the Marina Fest Committee have not met recently. The 48 
Marina Committee will be meeting tomorrow at 2:00 P.M. 49 
 50 

6



Minutes for the April 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 
 

 

-6- 

Work is ongoing on planning for Marina Fest. A Lumberjack Show will be conducted on 1 
the Sunday of Labor Day, so Marina Fest will now be a two day event. The SBAA will be 2 
booking a bigger name act to perform on that evening.  3 

 4 
(12)  Marketing Committee: 5 

No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. Work is 6 
ongoing on the drafting of an Operating Agreement between the Village and the SBAA.  7 

 8 
(13)  Parks: 9 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.   10 
 11 
(14)  Personnel Committee: 12 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 13 
 14 
(15)  Plan Commission: 15 
 The Plan Commission will not be meeting until next Thursday, April 28, 2015. 16 
 17 
(16)  SBAA: 18 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. This year 19 

the goat parade will be conducted in conjunction with Sip & Savor. Clove suggested that 20 
goat races be conducted. 21 

 22 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Baker that the quarterly support for the SBAA shall 23 
be released ASAP. Motion carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
(17)  Teen Center: 26 
 The Teen Center Board has not met recently. 27 
 28 
(18)  Tourism Zone Commission: 29 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 30 
 31 
(19)  Utilities – Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Committees: 32 
 The April 14, 2015 Utilities Committee was not conducted as there was not a quorum 33 

present.  34 
 35 
 No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 36 
 37 
(20)  Administration/Compensation Oversight: 38 
 The Administration/Compensation Oversight Committee has not met recently. 39 
(21)  Waterfront Oversight 40 
 The Waterfront Oversight Committee has not met recently. 41 
 42 
11. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, 43 
official or employee: 44 
It was the consensus that the following item shall be added to the agenda for the May Village 45 
Board Meeting: 46 

   Consider a motion to approve President Lienau’s recommendations regarding 47 
committee and commission appointments. 48 

 49 

7



Minutes for the April 21, 2015 Meeting of the Village Board 
 

I:\2015 Agendas\Board\2015\2015_04\042115 Meeting\word\042115 Village Board Meeting Minutes - 
Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 03/04/2015; Last Printed: 5/15/2015 3:59 PM 

-7- 

Further, the following item shall be addressed at a future Village Board Meeting: 1 
 2 

   Discussion regarding the proposed Special Event By-Laws; and consider a motion for 3 
action if necessary. 4 

 5 
Adjournment: 6 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 7 
Trustees at   9:05 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 8 
 9 
Respectfully submitted,  10 

 11 
Janal Suppanz, 12 
Assistant Administrator  13 

14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

8



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
For additional information: www.sisterbay.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting Date: 5/19/15 
Item No.: 1 

 

Recommendation: That the Board of Review be called to order and immediately make a motion to 
adjourn the session to Tuesday June 16, 2015 from 6 to 8 PM. 

 
Background: Pursuant to Wis. Stats. §70.47(1), the Village’s Board of Review must meet during the 30 
day period beginning on the 1st Monday of May. This year’s Open Book will take place Thursday, May 
28, 2015 from 2:30 P.M to 4:30.PM at the Sister Bay/Liberty Grove Fire Station, 2258 Mill Rd. 

9

http://www.sisterbay.gov/


Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 05/19/15  
           Item No.: 2 
 
Recommendation: Accept a recommendation of the Plan Commission and grant approval for a CSM rede-
fining parts of Waterfront Park. 
 
Background: The DNR Stewardship and Fed. Rec. Trails, totaling $489,235 and $45,000 have been 
awarded for the Beach Project.  These awards require the Village to place restrictive language on the parcel 
in which the Beach sits.  Since the old Helms lot was purchased with Stewardship funding, the language al-
ready existed on the lot.  The new beach straddles two lots, one of which may be commercial in the future 
and necessitate expansion or modifications to the current Post Office Building.  It, therefore, becomes a 
prudent measure to protect the Village’s future financial interests by mitigating a subsequent 6f conversion 
of the parkland, and associated loss of potential revenue from the assets in the park. 
 
This CSM minimizes the impacts of the restrictive language to a likely future commercial site, maximizing 
flexibility for future development while balancing the need to protect the waterfront. 
 
Fiscal Impact: none at this time; unknown for the future. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
File Name: document2 
Printed: 5/15/2015 4:02 PM  Created: 8/5/2005 9:53 AM 
Author: Sister Bay  Revision: 1/ 

10























S

7

5

°

4

7

'
3

5

"

E

 

 

1

8

2

.

0

1

'

S

7

8

°

0

7

'
2

3

"

E

7

3

.

0

8

'

(

N

8

5

°

2

9

'

3

3

"

W

)

(

S

7

8

°

3

2

'
2

5

"

E

)

(

7

2

.

9

9

)

1
2
9
.
9
9
'

N

6

6

°
0

3

'3

7

"
W

N57
°38
'31"
W

89.79'

2
5
8
.
0
4
'

1
2
8
.
0
5
'










N
3
4
°
5
2
'
0
3
"
E

2
5
8
.
0
4
'

N

8

5

°

0

9

'

3

8

"

W

 

 

2

9

2

.

1

1

'

1
9
.9

2
'

 

±

1

3

0

.

0

0

'

N
5
0
°
3
1
'3
0
"
W

N

0

0

°

0

2

'

1

9

"

E 6

0

.

3

0

'

 

±

6

9

.

7

0

'

(

6

0

.

1

3

'

)

(

N

0

0

°

3

0

'

3

1

"

W

)

(N
5
0
°
4
0
'2
3
"W
)

(

1

2

1

.

1

3

'

)

(

N

7

1

°

3

2

'

4

8

"

E

)

 ±230.00'S55°20'50"E

6

0

.
3

0

'

 ±97.51'

(165' TO C OF ROAD)

132.49'

L

156.00'

2
5

6
.
7

4
'

S
3
3
°
3
8
'
5
1
"
W

6
0

.
5

0
'

1
9
7
.
7
8
'

S
3
5
°
4
7
'
0
0
"
W

2

4

1

.

3

1

'

S

7

6

°

0

0

'

0

0

"

W

L

1

L

2

L

7

L

8

L

4

L

5

L

6

L

3

±

2

3

3

.
0

0

'

3
4
.
4
5
'

1
6
1
.
7
9
'

3

3

.
2

6

'

1

9

9

.
7

4

'








weighing 1.38 lbs./lin. ft.

Existing 1"Ø Iron Pipe

Recorded County Monument

Set 1" x 18" Iron Pipe 

SHEET 1 OF 2

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

S
T

A
T

E
 
H

I
G

H
W

A
Y

 
'
4
2
'






B
A

Y
 
S

H
O

R
E

 
D

R
I
V

E

Existing 2"Ø Iron Pipe

Point of BeginningPOB

Set PK Nail

MILL ROAD

POB





S

I

S

T

E

R

 

 

B

A

Y







11



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 05/19/15  
            Item No.: 3 
 
Recommendation: Accept a recommendation of the Plan Commission conditionally and grant approval for 
a CSM redefining parts of the Braun Property. 
 
Background: The Village’s BSD project necessitated the replacement of grant impaired properties along the 
Waterfront Park area with like use properties elsewhere in the Village.  The Board and appropriate commit-
tees have already approved the 6f conversion of the Mill Rd. lot.  The Braun lot purchase has likewise been 
authorized for this purpose. 
 
This CSM officially recognizes the land area that a parking lot will need to be constructed on in the future. 
 
Condition-This CSM cannot be recorded until such time that the transaction occurs and the Village holds 
title to the property. 
 
Fiscal Impact: none at this time; unknown for the future. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
File Name: document2 
Printed: 5/15/2015 4:03 PM  Created: 8/5/2005 9:53 AM 
Author: Sister Bay  Revision: 1/ 

12



13



14



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 05/19/15  
            Item No.: 4 
 
Recommendation: Accept a recommendation of the Finance Committee and accept the 2014 audit as pre-
sented by Schenck SC. 
 
Background: This is an ongoing management issue concerning the retirement of the current Finance Direc-
tor. 
 
Fiscal Impact: The Village will need to keep a close watch on outstanding debt as well as available capaci-
ty for new debt.  We will also need to add a line item to the Marina budget in this coming year under ex-
penses, which will address the non-cash item of “discounts”.  A policy governing this should be adopted by 
the Marina Committee. 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
File Name: document2 
Printed: 5/15/2015 4:03 PM  Created: 8/5/2005 9:53 AM 
Author: Sister Bay  Revision: 1/ 

15



MANAGEMENT COMMUNICATIONS

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY. WISCONSIN

DECEMBER 31,2014

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY, WISCONSIN

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

DECEMBER 31,2014

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



Village of Sister Bay 
BOARD REPORT 

 
            Meeting Date 05/19/15  
            Item No.: 5 
 
Recommendation: Accept a recommendation of the Finance Committee and adopt Resolution 311-051915 
designating public depositories and signers. 
 
Background: This is an ongoing management issue concerning the retirement of the current Finance Direc-
tor. 
 
Fiscal Impact: N/A 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Zeke Jackson 
       Village Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
File Name: document2 
Printed: 5/15/2015 4:04 PM  Created: 8/5/2005 9:53 AM 
Author: Sister Bay  Revision: 1/ 

87



 
Resolution No. 311-051915 

 

Resolution Designating Public Depositories and Signers 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay is a municipal corporation whose principle place of business is 
located at 2383 Maple Dr., Sister Bay, Wisconsin, and  
 
WHEREAS , the Village of Sister Bay is required by Chapter 34 of the Wisconsin Statutes to designate 
the public depositories into which all public monies shall be deposited, and 
 
WHEREAS, all financial institutions require a resolution naming the authorized signers on accounts, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Village Board of the Village of Sister Bay, Wisconsin, 
hereby designate the following Wisconsin financial institutions as the public depositories for all public 
monies received by the Village Clerk/Treasurer and/or the Village Utility Clerk: 
 
 American Deposit Management of Delafield, WI 
 Associated Bay, NA, of Green Bay, WI 
 Baylake Bank of Sturgeon Bay, WI  
 First Business Bank of Madison and Milwaukee, WI 
 North Shore Bank, FSB, of Brookfield, WI  
  
FURTHER, that the following individuals are the authorized signers at those public depositories: 
For Village and Marina accounts 
 Village Clerk/Treasurer 
 Village President 
 Village Finance Director 
For Sewer and Water Utility accounts 
 Village Finance Director 
 Utilities Manager  
 The Village Administrator 
 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay held this 19th day of 
May 2015 
       Passed and adopted this ___ day of ______________, 2015. 
 
       _____________________________________ 
       David W. Lienau, President 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________     VOTE: Ayes _____ Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk WCPC 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true, correct and complete copy of Resolution 264, 
duly and regularly adopted by the Village Board for the Village of Sister Bay on the 19th day of May 
2015. I also certify that said Resolution has not been repealed or amended and is now in full force and 
effect. 
 
          __________________________________
           Christy Sully, Village Clerk WCPC 

88



Resolution Authorizing Sale of Property  
No 314-051915 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay, by its Board of Trustees, has entered into 

discussions for an agreement for the sale of property approximately 5 acres of Village owned 

property located at the intersections of Jungwirth Ct. and N. Highland Rd., and as depicted on a 

CSM submitted by Brian Peot; 

AND, WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay by its Board of Trustees has agreed to sell the 
following described property, upon the terms and conditions outlined in the offer. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 

Village of Sister Bay as follows: 

 
1.  The Village of Sister Bay hereby resolves to convey the following described 

property, zoned R-2, to Premier Real Estate Management LLC or their assigns upon payment 
by Premier Real Estate Management LLC.: 

 
2.  The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay authorizes the President 

and Clerk of the Village of Sister Bay to execute conveyance documents to complete such 
transaction and to further execute any extensions, amendments, or modifications  in the 
sale documents which are not inconsistent with this Resolution. 

 

 
 
 

89



Village of Sister Bay 
Board Report 

 
For additional information: http://intranet.sisterbay.com 

 

            Meeting Date: 5/19/15 
            Item No.: 11 
Recommendation: Please be advised that I have reviewed the following bills and recommend them 
for approval and payment: 

Bills By Type Amount Total 
Village bills prepaid 72,092.14  
Village regular bills 12,167.46  
Bank fees & bills paid electronically 301.42  

Village total 84,561.02 84,561.02 
   
Marina bills prepaid 9,625.99  
Marina regular bills 2,499.29  
Marina sales tax 4.172.70  
Marina credit card fees 1,229.90  

Marina total 13,360.05 13,360.05 
   
Special Events Fund bills prepaid, 2,510.00  
Special Events Fund regular bills 552.99  
                   Minor funds total 3,062.99 3,062.99 
 7,581.69  
Debt Service - Village 22,300.00  
                    - Marina 0.00  
                    - Utilities 0.00  

Debt Service total 22,300.00 22,300.00   
   
CIP/TIF bills prepaid 252,063.53  
CIP/TIF regular bills 12,391.99  

CIP/TIF total 264,455.52 264,455.52 

   
Utility bills prepaid 40,146.22  
Utility regular bills 4,236.65  
Bank fees & bills paid electronically 100.95  

Utility total 44,483.82 44,483.82 
   

Payroll: Net Pay 5/01 & 5/15 34,563.15  

State taxes paid online in April 2,317.58  

Retirement paid online in April 5,691.22  

             Payroll/taxes total 42,571.95 42,571.95 

    
  Total All Bills 

  
$474,795.35                                                            

Fiscal Impact: As above. 
       Respectfully submitted, 

          
       Juliana Neuman 
       Village Finance Director 
 
File Name: h:\files\active\agendas\board\2015\2015_05\br 9 may 2015 appropriations.docx Printed: 5/15/2015 4:05:22 PM Creat-
ed: 5/15/2015 4:05 PM   Author:  Juliana Neuman  

90

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

FRIDAY, MAY 1, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY VILLAGE HALL – 10693 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The May 1, 2015 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Finance Committee was called to order by 6 

Acting Chair Dave Lienau at 8:34 A.M. Lienau noted that Solomon, who is the Chair of the 7 

Finance Committee, had another commitment, and asked him to assume his duties at this 8 

meeting. 9 

 10 

Committee Members Present: Acting Chair Dave Lienau and Committee Member Pat Duffy. 11 

 12 

Excused:  Committee Chair Shane Solomon 13 

 14 

Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, and 15 

Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 16 

 17 

Others:  Al Gokey, John Clove, Kathy Enquist, and Mike Konecny and Amber Drewieske of 18 

Schenck, SC. 19 

 20 

Approval of the Agenda: 21 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Agenda for the May 1, 2015 22 

meeting of the Finance Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 

 24 

Approval of the minutes for the February 24, 2015 meeting of the Finance Committee: 25 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the minutes for the February 24, 2015 26 

meeting of the Finance Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 27 

 28 

Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 29 

Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 30 

He then noted that no new correspondence had been received.  31 

 32 

Discussion Items: 33 

Item No. 1. Presentation of the 2014 Annual Audit by Mike Konecny of Schenck, SC: 34 

The 2014 Annual Audit for the Village of Sister Bay was included in the meeting packets and 35 

Mike Konecny and Amber Drewieske of Schenck, SC jointly reviewed that document with the 36 

Committee members. Basically the Village had a good year budget-wise, and the auditors did 37 

not identify any significant difficulties or deficiencies with the financial records for 2014. 38 

Konecny pointed out the following items:  39 

  The general fund balance did increase from $408,763 to $748,451. That increase was 40 

the result of the sale of Village properties and receipt of funds from the D.O.T.  41 

  The Village’s current general fund unassigned fund balance of $243,186 represents 42 

approximately 15% of the 2015 budgeted general fund expenditures. The established 43 

goal is to be at 25%.  44 

103



Minutes for the May 1, 2015 Meeting of the Finance Committee 

 

-2- 
 

  The operating expenses at the Marina went from $483,604 in 2013 to $384,034 in 1 

2014. (That variance is the result of dredging being done in 2013.)  2 

  Operating expenses for the Water Department went from $398,919 in 2013 to $322,869 3 

in 2014. (That variance is the result of the water tower being painted in 2013.)  4 

  On paper there was an operating loss at the Wastewater Department. That was the result 5 

of not recovering sufficient revenues from customers to fund annual depreciation 6 

expenses of $261,846. The Utility is actually generating positive cash flows from 7 

operating activities, as depreciation is not a current cash use.  8 

 The Utility generated a rate of return of 8.29% in 2014. The rate of return calculation is a 9 

formula established by the Public Service Commission, which regulates and sets the 10 

Water Utility rates. The rate of return authorized by the PSC is 5%. 11 

 The net unreimbursed cost in the TIF District as of December 31, 2014 was $5,044,820, 12 

and the TIF fund balance as of December 31, 2014 was $1,054,646.  13 

  During the audit process the auditors reviewed the procedures and controls for Marina 14 

collections and refunds. In some instances discounted seasonal slip rental fees were 15 

applied during 2014. The auditors are recommending that specific fee reduction 16 

guidelines be established for the Marina ASAP.  17 

 18 

Duffy noted that Konecny has been involved with the recruitment/interview process for a new 19 

Finance Director and thanked him for all his assistance.     20 

 21 

Item No. 7. Consider a motion to make a recommendation to the Village Board that a 22 

Resolution designating authorized signers on Village and Utility bank accounts be approved: 23 

Since Neuman will be retiring in the near future there is a need to designate new authorized 24 

signers on Village and Utility bank accounts. A draft of an applicable Resolution was included 25 

in the meeting packets, and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. Basically 26 

individual persons are not named; and instead Village officials are designated. 27 

 28 

A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Lienau that the Finance Committee recommends 29 

that Resolution No. 311, which states that the Village Clerk-Treasurer, Village President and 30 

Finance Director be designated as authorized signers on all Village and Marina accounts; and 31 

that the Finance Director, the Utilities Manager and the Village Administrator be designated as 32 

authorized signers on all sewer and water utility accounts, be approved as presented. Motion 33 

carried – All ayes.   34 

 35 

At 9:05 A.M. Neuman indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting. 36 

 37 

Item No. 5. Consider a motion to provide remuneration/incentive to the SBAA for the work 38 

which was done on the “Midwest Sunsplash” JEM Grant Application submitted to the 39 

Wisconsin Department of Tourism: 40 

Jackson is happy to report that word has been received that a $25,555 JEM Grant will be 41 

awarded to the SBAA and the Village to help cover marketing expenses related to “Midwest 42 

Sunsplash”.  The Department of Tourism has imposed a condition that in order to receive the 43 

JEM Grant, matching funds of $5,800 must be provided by the Village. Paige Funkhouser, the 44 

104



Minutes for the May 1, 2015 Meeting of the Finance Committee 

 

-3- 
 

SBAA Coordinator, spent a significant amount of time on the JEM grant application, and 1 

Jackson is recommending that the SBAA be awarded an incentive payment of $250. Lienau 2 

noted that the expenditure of $15,000 of Village funds has already been authorized for 3 

“Midwest Sunsplash”, and, therefore, he believes the $5,800 should be replaced if any profits 4 

are realized. 5 

 6 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Finance Committee gratefully 7 

accepts the JEM Grant of $25,555 from the Wisconsin Department of Tourism. An incentive 8 

payment of $250 shall be provided to the SBAA for the work they did on the JEM grant 9 

application, and in accord with the conditions imposed by the Wisconsin Department of 10 

Tourism the Village shall provide matching funds of $5,800 to cover marketing expenses related 11 

to “Midwest Sunsplash”. The matching funds are being provided on the condition that some or 12 

all of the $5,800 shall be recouped from any profits which are realized at “Midwest Sunsplash”. 13 

Motion carried – All ayes. 14 

 15 

Item No. 6. Discussion regarding developer recruitment with respect to the Downtown 16 

Redevelopment Plan at the BLLA 2015 Investment Conference: 17 

To date the consulting firm which was hired by the Village has not been successful in recruiting 18 

any potential developers. In order for the consultant to present the Downtown Redevelopment 19 

Plan to potential developers and promote Sister Bay an additional expenditure of $25,000 will 20 

be required. The Village will own the Braun property soon and Jackson really has no 21 

mechanism for meeting potential developers. There is a developer who is interested in that 22 

property, but he will not be in a position to make any offers until at least August. Jackson 23 

believes the previously mentioned funds would be better spent if he and the Village’s Marketing 24 

Director were given permission to attend the Boutique & Lifestyle Lodging Association (BLLA) 25 

2015 Investment Conference, which will be conducted in New York in June. A similar 26 

conference will be conducted in Los Angeles in September.  27 

 28 

Duffy noted that this is an extremely busy time of year, and simply doesn’t want to see Jackson 29 

and Polecheck “stretched too thin”. Lienau concurred, and, therefore, no one will be attending 30 

either of the previously mentioned conferences on behalf of the Village.     31 

 32 

Item No. 2. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. 33 

§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 34 

public funds, or conduct other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining 35 

reasons require a closed session: 36 

At 10:01 A.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Finance Committee 37 

convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 38 

purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified public 39 

business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. 40 

 41 

A roll call vote was taken on the motion and the Committee members voted in the following 42 

fashion: 43 

    Duffy – Aye;  Lienau – Aye.   44 

Motion carried. 45 

105



Minutes for the May 1, 2015 Meeting of the Finance Committee 

I:\2015 Agendas\Finance\2015\2015_05\050115 Finance Com. Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 5/1/2015; Last Printed: 5/14/2015 3:37 PM 

-4- 
 

Item No. 3. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session. 1 

At 10:29 A.M. a motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Finance Committee 2 

reconvene into open session. 3 

 4 

Another roll call vote was taken and the Committee members again voted in the following 5 

fashion: 6 

    Duffy – Aye;  Lienau – Aye. 7 

Motion carried. 8 

 9 

Item No. 4. Consider a motion to take action, if required. 10 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Finance Committee recommends 11 

that the plan to transact the balance of the Old Helms Cottage lot in return for construction of 12 

the restroom facilities which were discussed at this meeting be implemented. (The restroom 13 

facilities will have a value of approximately $80,000.) Motion carried – All ayes.   14 

 15 

Item No. 8. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 16 

committee, official or employee: 17 

There were no matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, official or 18 

employee. 19 

 20 

Adjournment 21 

At 10:31 A.M a motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Lienau that the meeting be 22 

adjourned. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 

 24 
Respectfully submitted,  25 

 26 
Janal Suppanz,  27 
Assistant Administrator 28 
 29 

 30 

106



Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission 
                                     Meeting May 5, 2015 
 
The meeting of the Sister Bay / Liberty Grove Library Commission was called to order by 
Virginia Phelan at 9:00 A.M. 
 
Members Present: Virginia Phelan, Allen Strack, Frank Forkert, Kathy Enquist, Margot Warch,  
Betty Curzon and Ralph Blankenburg.  
 
Absent: Henry Timm 
 
Public Input:  None 
 
Review and Approve the Minutes of the April 14, 2015 Meeting: 
Frank Forkert moved and Allen Strack seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the April 
14, 2015 meeting as corrected. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Review and Payment of Bills: 
 

Village of Sister Bay Propane $695.82 
Village of Sister Bay Property & Liability Insurance $1,180.61 
Wulf Brothers A/C Service Contract $328.95 
Village of Sister Bay Domestic Water $291.59 
Village of Sister Bay Fire Sprinkler Water $110.00 
Sparkle Cleaning Service General Cleaning $780.00 
Village of Sister Bay Snow Shoveling $618.98 
Kimvo Engraving, Inc. Bench and Table Donated Plates $39.32 
Total 

 
$4,045.27 

 
Margot Warch moved and  Kathy Enquist seconded the motion to approve the payment of the 
bills.  The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Librarians Report 
Betty Curzon gave a verbal report. 
Comparison Statistics comparing April 2015 with April 2014. 
 
Circulation: 
2014 4176 
2015    3703 
   
People/Programs: 
2014 3 Programs  
2015 1 Programs  
  
Wireless: 
2014. 511 
2015. 393 
 
 

107



 
Computers: 
SAM(Public)  
2014:  375 sessions    
2015:  322 sessions      
 
 Overdrive: 
 2014: 136 e-book uses  79  Audio book uses 
 2015: 299 e-book uses 109 Audio book uses 
 
Amos the dog will be back in May to have the children read to him. 
May 15 will be the start of a new movie series at the library.  The first movie will be Selma. 
 
Audit: 
No questions were raised. 
   
Yard:  
Ralph reported that Lakeshores Landscape will be here next week to do the spring cleanup.  
Ralph asked John Meredith of Lakeshores Landscape for a Bid for 2016 - 2018 landscape 
maintenance. 
Virginia Phelan reported that the plaques for the benches and tables were delivered and Betty 
Curzon will have Jeff Ward install them. 
 
Committee Reports: 
No reports. 
 
Next Meeting: 

June 9, 2015 @ 1:00 p.m. 
 
Adjourn: 
It was moved by Margot Warch and seconded by Frank Forkert to adjourn at 10:10 a. m.  The 
motion passed 5-0. 
 
Submitted by: Ralph Blankenburg. 

108



MARINA COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 22, 2015 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The April 22, 2015 meeting of the Marina Committee was called to order by Chairperson John 6 
Clove at 2:00 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Clove, and members Pat Duffy, Fuzzy Sunstrom and Dan Jungwirth. 9 
 10 
Excused:  Jeff Flegel and Shane Solomon 11 
 12 
Others:  Ram Rojas and Ron Myers 13 
 14 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marina Manager Nicole Krauel, and 15 
Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. Assistant Marina Manager Aaron Bley appeared by 16 
phone. 17 
 18 
Approval of the agenda: 19 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the agenda for the April 22, 2015 20 
meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 21 
 22 
Approval of minutes as published: 23 
As to the minutes for the December 2, 2014 meeting of the Marina Committee: 24 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the minutes for the December 2, 25 
2014 meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 26 
 27 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 28 
Clove asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 29 
He then noted that Kevin Roberts has resigned from the Marina Committee as he moved out of 30 
the Village. 31 
  32 
Business Items: 33 
Item No. 1. Introduction of the new Marina Manager, Nicole Krauel, and the new Assistant 34 
Marina Manager, Aaron Bley: 35 
Clove and Jackson introduced the new Marina Manager, Nicole Krauel, and the new Assistant 36 
Marina Manager Aaron Bley. The Committee members welcomed Krauel and Bley and 37 
indicated that they look forward to working with both of them. Clove stressed that he wants the 38 
Marina to run as efficiently as possible, and, therefore, the management and operation of that 39 
facility will be left up to Krauel’s discretion. Only out-of-the-ordinary matters will require 40 
Committee approval. 41 
 42 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding marina activities with the Marina Manager: 43 
The Seasonal Marina Slip Holder List for 2015 as well as data regarding transient slip rentals for 44 
2015 was included in the meeting packets. The majority of the seasonal reservations were made 45 
by Bley, and he jointly reviewed the contents of the list with the Committee members. Only a 46 
50’ seasonal slip and a 60’ seasonal slip are still available, and a concerted effort will be made 47 
to rent both of them.  The Committee members indicated that they were very pleased to see that 48 
Bley was able to rent so many seasonal slips and thanked him for all his efforts.  49 
 50 

109



Minutes of the April 22, 2015 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

 

 

-2- 

 

At 2:15 P.M. Bley indicated that he had another engagement and hung up.    1 
  2 
In the past the Marina Manager discounted slip rental fees based upon the time of the year or 3 
detrimental slip conditions which existed, but the Village’s auditors have indicated that they 4 
believe an official policy should be created and adhered to before any more discounts are 5 
applied. 6 
 7 
Krauel is very familiar with Marina Magic software as it was utilized at her former place of 8 
employment. Lodgical is utilized at the Sister Bay Marina, and at least initially Krauel would like 9 
to try to learn to use it. She will do some research regarding the software other marinas utilize 10 
and will present a report concerning this issue at the next meeting.    11 
 12 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding the Boathouse Mural Project; and consider a motion for 13 
action if necessary: 14 
Ram Rojas, who created the mural which is on the wall of Nelson Hardware in Baileys Harbor, 15 
and his associate, Ron Myers, would like to create a mural on the wall of a building(s) in Sister 16 
Bay. The Parks Committee has recommended that the mural be placed on one or more exterior 17 
walls of the Boathouse. Rojas has considered placing a mural which depicts the Village’s 18 
maritime history on the east and south walls of the Boathouse, and believes this subject matter 19 
would be very well received. It typically costs $50,000 to fund a mural project, and generally 20 
tax deductible donations are solicited to cover expenses. If the decision is made to create a 21 
mural a Project Manager will be required.  22 
 23 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom that the Marina Committee grants 24 
permission for Ram Rojas to create a mural on the Boathouse. Motion carried – All ayes. 25 
 26 
Rojas indicated that he will create sketches of proposed murals and provide them to the 27 
employees in the Administration Office ASAP. 28 
  29 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding needed repairs to the docks:  30 
There are a number of repairs which are needed on “A” Dock. The Village’s Facilities Manager, 31 
Steve Mann, does have a temporary repair plan in mind, and Clove thinks the Parks Department 32 
employees as well as Bley could make those repairs. Discussion took place regarding this issue, 33 
and it was the consensus that it might be better to investigate the costs of a longer term fix. 34 
Krauel was asked to investigate the repair options which are available for “A” Dock and see that 35 
estimates are included in the packets for the next meeting of the Marina Committee. 36 
 37 
Discussion took place regarding installation of a fuel system at the Marina, and Clove explained 38 
the progress which has been made on planning for such a project. The next step in the process 39 
is to get preliminary fuel dock design plans. Krauel and Bley will keep the Committee members 40 
advised of the progress which is being made on drafting of the plans, and will present them to 41 
the Committee members ASAP.    42 
 43 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding painting: 44 
Last year the Marina staff members repainted the exterior of the Marina Office Building but quite 45 
a bit of touch-up is needed. Clove is suggesting that the Maintenance Department employees be 46 
asked to do that work. It was the consensus that this shall occur.  47 
 48 
 49 

110



Minutes of the April 22, 2015 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

I:\2015 Agendas\Marina\2015\2015_04\042215 Marina Committee Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 04/22/2015; Last Printed: 5/15/2015 1:14 PM 

-3- 

 

Item No. 5. Discussion regarding marketing of the Marina; and introduction of the 1 
Marketing Director for the Village of Sister Bay: 2 
Jason Polecheck has been hired as the Marketing Director for the Village. Part of his job duties 3 
will be to market the Marina as a “destination”. He will also plan and coordinate events to be 4 
conducted at the Marina. Drafts of a proposed Marina event invitation for transient boaters, a 5 
tri-fold brochure and an ad which will appear in Scuttlebutt magazine were included in the 6 
meeting packets, and the Committee members jointly reviewed all of that documentation. 7 
Jackson took note of all suggested revisions.  Discussion took place regarding whether or not 8 
seasonal slip holders should be invited to the previously mentioned events, and it was the 9 
consensus that if a sufficient number of RSVP’s are not received from transient boaters, 10 
invitations shall be distributed to the seasonal slip holders. If the seasonal slip holders wish to 11 
attend any of the previously mentioned events they shall be charged $20 per ticket. 12 
 13 
Item No. 6. Discussion on marina activities with the Marina Manager: 14 
Krauel gave the following oral report: 15 
 16 

    She recently met with Steve Mann, and walked the docks. Mann pointed out the areas 17 
which are in need of repair, and arrangements have been made for those repairs to be 18 
made.  19 

    Invoices will be mailed to all the commercial vendors at the Marina in the near future.  20 

    Mann and Krauel have been asked to see that additional signage is created for the top 21 
of the commercial vendor kiosk at the Marina. 22 

    This year Max McHugh, Ethan Voeks, Olivia Potter, Griffin Olson, Collin Duffy, Ashley 23 
Hockers and Ava Erickson will be working at the Marina.  24 

 25 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to discuss matter to be placed on a future agenda or referred 26 
to a committee, official or employee: 27 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at the next meeting of the 28 
Marina Committee: 29 
 A.   Discussion regarding the brands of Marina software which are available. 30 
 B.   Discussion regarding “A” Dock repairs. 31 
 C.   Discussion regarding establishment of a policy concerning answering of  32 
        the telephone at the Marina. 33 
  D.   Discussion regarding establishment of a policy concerning the assistance  34 
        Marina employeess shall provide to persons utilizing the launch ramp at the         35 
        Marina. 36 
The next meeting of the Marina Committee was scheduled for Wednesday, May 27, 2015 at 37 
2:00 P.M.  38 
 39 
Adjournment: 40 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Sunstrom to adjourn the meeting of the Marina 41 
Committee at 4:09 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 42 
 43 
Respectfully submitted,  44 

 45 
Janal Suppanz,  46 
Assistant Administrator 47 

111



PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 6, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The May 6, 2015 meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was called to 6 
order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 2:24 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and 9 
Scott Baker.   10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Facilities Manager Steve Mann, and 12 
Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz.  13 
 14 
Others: Rick Wylie, Mark Schuster, Paige Funkhouser, Greg Casperson, Ann Scholl, Sean 15 
Ryan, Rob Zoschke, Dick and Mary Smythe, John Cain and Carrie Baldwin-Smith.      16 
 17 
Approval of Agenda: 18 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the May 6, 2015 19 
meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 20 
 21 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 22 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. 23 
 24 
Rick Wylie of Bay Shore Outdoor indicated that he has been operating his silent sports 25 
business out of Waterfront Park for a number of years. He’s excited about the Beach 26 
Expansion Project, but is also confused about what the future holds with respect to a 27 
designated location for his business. Lienau responded that Village officials have not 28 
determined what the long term plan for utilization of the new beach will be yet, but for this 29 
year they are willing to designate a temporary location for a silent sports launch area. That 30 
location is on the western end of the beach, inside the rock groin. Wylie was instructed to 31 
discuss the logistical issues associated with this issue with Jackson after this meeting, and it 32 
was the consensus that it shall be fully addressed at a future meeting of the Parks 33 
Committee. 34 
 35 
Mary and Dick Smythe appeared on behalf of the Woodcrest Village Condominium 36 
Owner’s Association. They expressed concerns about having an approved snowmobile 37 
trail run through certain portions of the Village. The route which is currently being 38 
proposed by the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile Club affects the residents of four 39 
condominium associations -  Timber Ridge, Pheasant Park, Woodcrest Village and 40 
Skogland, as well as a number of people who own private residences along the trail route, 41 
as a number of noise and safety issues will arise. Mary, who is the President of the 42 
Woodcrest Village Condominium Association, wrote a letter to the Parks Committee 43 
concerning this issue, and that letter was read aloud. 44 
 45 
Larry Cain indicated that he also is a member of the Board of Directors at Woodcrest 46 
Village and wholeheartedly agrees with Smythe.   47 
 48 

112



Minutes for the May 6, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 2 - 

Lienau noted that the following pieces of correspondence were included in the meeting 1 
packets. 2 
 3 

 A letter from Ingert Johnson in which she states that she doesn’t like the 4 
appearance of the menu mailboxes which have been placed by The 5 
Boathouse. Johnson also states that she thinks the Village’s Christmas 6 
decorations are “ugly”. 7 

 A letter and photos which were received from Quinn Lundquist. (In that 8 
letter Lundquist describes some suggestions she has for providing shade on 9 
the new beach.) 10 

 E-mails from and to Paul Collins concerning Door County Folk Fest, which 11 
will be conducted in Door County from July 8 – 12, 2015. Collins has 12 
reserved the Village Hall for that event. 13 

 14 
Carrie Baldwin-Smith, who resides in Baileys Harbor and is the owner of Door County 15 
Event Planners, indicated that she plans and organizes a number of weddings and other 16 
large events throughout Door County. When she heard that the Sister Bay beach was being 17 
expanded she thought there would be an excellent opportunity for the Village to create a 18 
private area for people to hold beachfront weddings or special events. No other Northern 19 
Door wedding or large event venue will be able to offer such an amenity. If the Village 20 
does decide to create a special event area and purchases its own tent, Baldwin-Smith 21 
believes rental fees of up to $1,500 per wedding or special event would be appropriate. 22 
No matter what use fee is established for the special event area, she believes a specific set 23 
of rules must be established, and any and all of them should be clearly delineated on any 24 
Facility Use Permits which are issued.  25 
   26 
Approval of minutes as published: 27 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching that the minutes for the April 8, 28 
2015 meeting of the Parks, Properties & Street Committee be approved as presented. 29 
Motion carried – All ayes. 30 
 31 
Business Items: 32 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding the Facility Use Application and supporting 33 
documentation which was submitted by the organizers of the 2015 Door County Century 34 
Bike Ride; and consider a motion for action if necessary: 35 
A Facility Use Application and accompanying documentation were submitted by John 36 
Mory and Sean Ryan on behalf of the organizers of the Door County Century Bike Ride, 37 
and all those documents were included in the meeting packets. The ride will be conducted 38 
on September 13, 2015, and Mory and Ryan would again like to establish ride routes and a 39 
rest area in the Village.   40 
 41 
Ryan was present and asked if it would be possible for ride organizers to utilize the 42 
Performance Pavilion rather than erect a large tent in Waterfront Park. He also noted that 43 
he will contact representatives of Gibraltar High School before school lets out to see if 44 
there are any clubs or organizations which would be interested in working at a fund raising 45 
booth(s).  46 
 47 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Facility Use Application and 48 
accompanying documentation which were submitted by John Mory and Sean Ryan on 49 

113



Minutes for the May 6, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 3 - 

behalf of the organizers of the Door County Century Bike Ride are all approved. Mory and 1 
Ryan and their associates will either be allowed to erect a large tent in Waterfront Park or 2 
utilize the Performance Pavilion as a shelter, but the decision as to which option is 3 
preferred will be made by Jackson and Suppanz once it is closer to the actual date of the 4 
ride. In either event the fees delineated on the Village’s Facillity Use Fee Schedule shall be 5 
imposed. Motion carried – All ayes. 6 
 7 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding the request from the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile 8 
Club to allow an official snowmobile route to be established in the Village in 2015; and 9 
consider a motion or action if necessary: 10 
A request from the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile Club to again establish an official 11 
snowmobile route in the Village was included in the meeting packets. There are some 12 
issues associated with 6(f) conversion which must be addressed before any final decisions 13 
are made regarding the location of snowmobile trails on parklands. 14 
 15 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Lienau that Agenda Item No. 2 – 16 
Discussion regarding the request from the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile Club to allow 17 
an official snowmobile route to be established in the Village in 2015, shall be tabled. 18 
Motion carried – All ayes. 19 
 20 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding installation of event fencing in Waterfront Park; and 21 
consider a motion for action if necessary:  22 
Jackson suggested that some type of event fencing be erected in the area surrounding the 23 
Performance Pavilion, and then presented a diagram of the proposed special event area. 24 
The suggestion was made that a two railed split rail fence be installed in that area. 25 
Doersching indicated that she is opposed to installation of a split rail fence as she does not 26 
believe it will prevent people from entering the special event area, and also will not be 27 
aesthetically pleasing. 28 
 29 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker, that a two railed split rail fence shall be 30 
installed around the special event area depicted on the diagram which was presented by 31 
Jackson at this meeting. The fence shall be installed this spring, and the funds for the 32 
fencing project shall be withdrawn from the Miscellaneous Parks Projects Account. Motion 33 
carried with Doersching opposed. 34 
 35 
Item No. 3. Discussion with Ram Rojas and Ron Myers regarding the Boathouse Mural 36 
Project; and consider a motion for action if necessary: 37 
Ram Rojas and Ron Myers met with the members of the Marina Committee, who granted 38 
permission for a mural which depicts the Village’s maritime history to be painted on the 39 
east and south walls of the Boathouse. It typically costs $50,000 to fund a mural project, 40 
and tax deductible donations are solicited by community members to cover expenses. 41 
Rojas and Myers do not know of any Sister Bay residents who would be interested in 42 
initiating a fund raising campaign, so they would be willing to try to raise the necessary 43 
funds themselves. The suggestion has been made that they create and sell some type of 44 
unique Sister Bay Beach themed memorabilia at festivals and special events in the Village, 45 
and Rojas presented a sample of the type of memorabilia he is considering. That 46 
memorabilia contained PCI sand. 47 
 48 
 49 

114



Minutes for the May 6, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

 

- 4 - 

A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Parks Committee grants 1 
permission for Ram Rojas and Ron Myers to sell officially licensed Sister Bay themed 2 
products which contain PCI sand to fund a public art project, (including the Boathouse 3 
Mural Project), at Village sponsored events. Motion carried – All ayes.    4 
 5 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that Ram Rojas and Ron Myers shall be 6 
granted permission to utilize Village facilities free of charge to do fund raising for a public 7 
art project, (including the Boathouse Mural Project), at Village sponsored events. Motion 8 
carried – All ayes. 9 
 10 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding the SBAA’s Menu Mailbox Outreach Project; and 11 
consider a motion for action if necessary: 12 
Representatives of the SBAA have initiated a Menu Mailbox Outreach Project. Mailboxes 13 
which hold menus have been placed outside of the new Visitor Center and by the 14 
Boathouse, but the finishing touches have not been added to them yet. During discussion 15 
the Committee members indicated that they believe the mailboxes which are by the 16 
Boathouse should be removed from that location ASAP. It was also the consensus that the 17 
posts the mailboxes are mounted on should be painted with the Village logo colors, and 18 
that the mailboxes should bear the names and logos of the sponsoring restaurants. 19 
  20 
Greg Casperson indicated that he has heard a number of comments from citizens that they 21 
do not know what the mailboxes are for and think they look “trashy”.   22 
 23 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the mailboxes which are by the 24 
Boathouse shall be removed and put in storage until they are completely finished. Once 25 
they are finished they shall be transferred to the area which is adjacent to the new sidewalk 26 
leading to the swim pier in Waterfront Park. Motion carried – All ayes. 27 
 28 
At 4:05 P.M. Lienau indicated that he had another obligation and left the meeting. Prior to 29 
leaving he appointed Clove Temporary Chairperson of the Parks, Properties & Streets 30 
Committee. 31 
 32 
Item No. 6. Report from Steve Mann on activities: 33 
Mann gave an oral report regarding the following issues: 34 

 Over the course of the winter the new pipes at the Village Hall froze. Mann spoke 35 
with representatives of Harbor Construction about this issue, and they stated that 36 
they believe the pipes froze because they weren’t buried low enough. (It was their 37 
understanding that Village officials did not want any of the sidewalks by the Village 38 
Hall to be removed.) It will cost a few hundred dollars to make the necessary 39 
repairs, and Mann has requested that the work be performed ASAP. 40 
 41 

 The gas line behind the Post Office needs to be repaired. Mann met with 42 
representatives of Ferrell Gas shortly after the damage was discovered and assumed 43 
the necessary repairs would be made, but to date that has not occurred. Jackson 44 
indicated that he will contact representatives of Ferrell Gas and instruct them to 45 
make the necessary repairs this week as time is of the essence. 46 
 47 

 If the Village wants to install buoys to designate the new swim areas DNR and 48 
Army Corps of Engineer Permits will be required. Mann was asked to discuss this 49 

115



Minutes for the May 6, 2015 Meeting of the Parks, Property and Streets Committee 

I:\2015 Agendas\Parks\2015\2015_05\050615 PPS Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 5/6/15; Last Printed: 5/14/2015 3:29 PM 

- 5 - 

issue with Mike Neal of the DNR and see that appropriate action is taken ASAP.    1 
 2 

Item No. 7. Discussion regarding other parks and streets activities: 3 
Doersching indicated that she and Mann will be riding around town and designating new 4 
locations for flower pots soon. 5 
 6 
The Village will be purchasing the Braun property. At one time there was a gas station on 7 
that property, and, therefore, it will be necessary to have a Phase II environmental site 8 
assessment completed prior to closing. (In accord with an agreement which was entered 9 
into with Arthur Braun the responsibility for having the assessment done lies with the 10 
Village.) Jackson has received a proposal from Robert E. Lee & Associates which states that 11 
the cost of the assessment will not exceed $6,500.  12 
 13 
A motion was made by Doersching, seconded by Baker that Robert E. Lee & Associates 14 
shall be retained to perform a Phase II environmental site assessment on the Braun property 15 
for a “not to exceed” price of $6,500. The assessment shall be paid for with funds which 16 
have been allocated for the Beach Project. Motion carried – All ayes. 17 
 18 
Item No. 8. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 19 
committee, official or employee: 20 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at a future meeting(s) of 21 
the Parks Committee: 22 
 23 

 Discussion regarding the request from the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile Club 24 
to allow an official snowmobile route to be established in the Village in 2015; and 25 
consider a motion for action if necessary. 26 
 27 

 Discussion regarding the designated silent sports launch area in Waterfront Park 28 
and the designated location for Bay Shore Outdoor to do business out of in 29 
Waterfront Park; and consider a motion for action if necessary. 30 

 31 
Adjournment: 32 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Doersching to adjourn the meeting of the 33 
Parks Committee at 4:31 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  34 
 35 
Respectfully submitted,  36 

 37 
Janal Suppanz,  38 
Assistant Administrator 39 

116



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, APRIL 28, 2015 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The April 28, 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 6 
Lienau at 5:40 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Scott Baker, Marge Grutzmacher, and Nate Bell.  9 
 10 
Excused:  Eric Lundquist, Shane Solomon and Don Howard 11 
 12 
Others:  Greg Casperson and Jim Westernan of Robert E. Lee & Associates.  13 
 14 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz. 15 
 16 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 17 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded.  18 
He then noted that no new correspondence had been received. 19 
 20 
Approval of the agenda: 21 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the April 28, 22 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 23 
 24 
Approval of minutes as published: 25 
As to the minutes for the March 24. 2015 meeting of the Plan Commission: 26 
Baker noted that the monetary figure shown on Line 9, Page 2 of the minutes for the March 24, 27 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission should be $5,075,000.00, not $5,075.00. 28 
 29 
A motion was made by Baker seconded by Grutzmacher that the minutes for the March 24, 30 
2015 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as amended. Motion carried – All ayes. 31 
  32 
Business Items: 33 
Item No. 1.  Consider a motion to approve a Certified Survey Map for Waterfront Park - 34 
Restrictions imposed by the DNR for receipt of grant funds: 35 
DNR officials have informed Jackson that the Village will receive a Stewardship grant in the 36 
amount of $489,285.00 as well as a Federal Recreation Trails Act grant in the amount of 37 
$45,000.00 to help defray the costs associated with the Beach Expansion Project. One of the 38 
conditions of the Stewardship grant award is that documents containing restrictive language be 39 
recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds for Door County, and, to that end, a draft of a 40 
Certified Survey Map for a portion of Waterfront Park was included in the meeting packets. The 41 
Commission members jointly reviewed the CSM, and it was the consensus that it is acceptable. 42 
 43 
A motion was made by Bell, seconded by Grutzmacher that the Plan Commission recommends 44 
that the Certified Survey Map for a portion of Waterfront Park which was reviewed at this 45 
meeting be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 46 
 47 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to grant conditional approval of a Certified Survey Map for the 48 
Braun property, which is located at the corner of Mill Road and Bay Shore Drive: 49 
A draft of a Certified Survey Map for the Braun property, which is located at the corner of Mill 50 

117



Minutes of the April 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

Road and S. Bay Shore Drive, was provided to the Board members prior to this meeting, and 1 
the Commission members jointly reviewed that document. Basically the CSM clarifies the 2 
description for the Braun property so that 6(f) conversion eligibility requirements can be met 3 
with respect to the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project. Jackson is recommending that the 4 
CSM be approved on the condition that before that document is recorded in the office of the 5 
Register of Deeds for Door County the Village must actually have purchased the Braun 6 
property. 7 
 8 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Plan Commission 9 
recommends that the Certified Survey Map for the Braun property which was reviewed at this 10 
meeting be approved on the condition that before that document is recorded in the office of the 11 
Register of Deeds for Door County, the Village must have actually have purchased the Braun 12 
property. Motion carried – All ayes. 13 
 14 
Item No. 3. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 15 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 16 
Jackson gave the following oral report: 17 
 18 

    Shrouds for some of the LED lights at SCAND have arrived and will be installed 19 
as a test measure soon. Jackson requested that the Commission members go to 20 
view the lights which have shrouds on them to see if they believe the issues 21 
which have been complained about to date will be eliminated. He has also 22 
requested input from surrounding property owners.  23 

   He will be meeting with the management of SCAND soon to discuss some 24 
landscaping issues which have arisen. 25 

   Noise limits are addressed in the Village’s Zoning Code, but time limits on when 26 
outdoor music must cease and outdoor seating must be vacated at local 27 
businesses is specifically addressed when annual liquor licensing conditions are 28 
formulated by the Village Board. A citizen has asked Jackson if the Village will 29 
be adhering to the existing liquor license condition that outdoor music must 30 
cease and all outdoor seating be vacated by 10:30 P.M. when weddings and 31 
special events are conducted on Village owned properties. It is quite likely that 32 
the citizen may ask that same question at the June Village Board Meeting. The 33 
suggestion was made that one way to meet the needs of all stakeholders would 34 
be to allow outdoor acoustic music to be played in the Village until 11:00 P.M.   35 

   Work is expected to be completed on the line burial project this week. A detour 36 
will be in effect for approximately two days while cuts are made across the 37 
highway. As soon as the hot mix plant opens the crew from the Highway 38 
Department will be making temporary road repairs, and site restoration work 39 
will be done ASAP. 40 

   Relaxed signage regulations will be in effect while work is being done on the 41 
Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project, and D.O.T. officials have indicated that 42 
temporary business identification signage will be allowed for businesses which 43 
will still be open after November 1, 2015.     44 

   Work is steadily progressing on the Beach Reconstruction Project. 45 
 46 
Item No. 4. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 47 
to a committee, Village official or employee: 48 
Premier Properties will be presenting plans for their development to the Plan 49 

118



Minutes of the April 28, 2015 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\2015 Agendas\Plan Com\2015\2015_04\042815 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 04/28/2015; Last Printed: 5/15/2015 1:35 PM 

 -3-  

 

Commission in the near future. 1 
 2 
Adjournment: 3 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 4 
Commission at 6:07 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 5 
 6 
Respectfully submitted,  7 

 8 
Janal Suppanz,  9 
Assistant Administrator 10 

119



SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, MAY 7, 2015 2 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION COORDINATOR’S OFFICE 3 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION - 2258 MILL ROAD   4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 

 6 

The May 7, 2015 meeting of the Sister Bay Advancement Association Board of Directors 7 
was called to order by President Drew Bickford at 8:06 A.M.    8 
 9 
Present:   President Bickford, Heidi Hitzeman, Larry Gajda, Steve Gomoll, Casey St. 10 
Henry, Ron Kane, Windy Bittorf, James Larsen, Jessica Grasse, Nora Zacek, Denise Bhirdo 11 
and Tonya Crowell.    12 
 13 
Staff Members:   Paige Funkhouser, SBAA Coordinator, and Janal Suppanz, Secretary. 14 
 15 
Excused: Jeannie Hoffman 16 
 17 
Others:  Becky Freundt, Gary Chaudoir, Sheena Zielke, Sally Pfeifer, Christine Kordon and 18 
Kristy Nelson. 19 
 20 
Business Items: 21 
Item No. 1.  Approval of the Agenda: 22 
Kane suggested that Agenda Item No. 3 be amended to read, “Consider a motion to 23 
convene into closed session to discuss or conduct other specified public business, 24 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session:” 25 
 26 
A motion was made by Hitzeman, seconded by Zacek, that the Agenda for the May 7, 27 
2015 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as amended. Motion carried – 28 
All ayes. 29 
 30 
Item No. 2.  Approval of the minutes for the April 2, 2015 meeting of the SBAA Board of 31 
Directors: 32 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Kane that the minutes for the April 2, 2015 33 
meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as amended. Motion carried – All 34 
ayes. 35 
 36 
Item No. 3. Financial Report: 37 
Financial reports for April were included in the meeting packets and the Board members 38 
jointly reviewed those documents. 39 
 40 
A motion was made by Larsen, seconded by Gajda that the Financial Reports which were 41 
reviewed at this meeting are approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 42 
 43 
Item No. 4. Coordinator’s Report: 44 
Funkhouser’s Coordinator’s Report was included in the meeting packets, and the Board 45 
members jointly reviewed that document. Funkhouser gave the following oral report: 46 
 47 
  48 

120



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  May 7, 2015 

- 2 - 

Seventeen restaurants are participating in the “Mailbox To Go Project”. As per the 1 
direction of the Parks Committee the mailboxes which were downtown and by the 2 
temporary Visitor Center will be removed and put in storage until the posts have been 3 
painted and decals attached. (Funkhouser is still waiting for information from some of the 4 
restaurant owners.) When they are finished the southern boxes will be returned to the 5 
temporary Visitor Center and the northern boxes will be placed in the area which is 6 
adjacent to the new sidewalk leading to the swim pier in Waterfront Park. 7 
 8 
The SBAA will be hosting three Movies In The Park. The show dates are July 15, 2015 – 9 
“Crybaby”, July 29, 2015 – “Jaws”, and August 12, 2015 – “The Men Who Stare at Goats”.  10 
 11 
A number of the Fall Fest arts and crafts vendor spaces have already been spoken for. 12 
 13 
Funkhouser is still working on organizing the Spring Social. 14 
 15 
Room tax collections for the months of January and February are up over last year. 16 
 17 
The temporary Visitor Center at Voight’s Auto is now open. Funkhouser thanked Drew 18 
Bickford and Laura Wilker, Casey St. Henry, Zeke Jackson and Mike Goldstone for all the 19 
assistance they provided with the move and installation of signage. 20 
 21 
The 2015 membership drive is complete. Funkhouser welcomed three new member 22 
businesses – Harbor Pie Co., Funky Cookie Studio and Peninsula Painting. 23 
 24 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding the Operating Agreement between the SBAA and the 25 
Village of Sister Bay: 26 
A draft of the proposed Operating Agreement between the SBAA and the Village was 27 
included in the meeting packets and the Board members jointly reviewed that document. 28 
Prior to the time that the review occurred Bickford explained that the agreement was 29 
drafted in an attempt to clarify the expectations of the Village as well as the SBAA. The 30 
members of the Board of Directors believed that an attorney should be retained to review 31 
the agreement before it was executed, and Attorney Tom Sutter was retained. He indicated 32 
that the agreement will be legally binding. Attorney Sutter’s biggest concern is that the 33 
Village makes quarterly support payments to the SBAA after a quarter has ended. This 34 
could be problematic if any issues arise.  35 
 36 
Bhirdo indicated that she will not be voting to approve the agreement as she is still 37 
opposed to the provision which states that the Association shall make at least one grant 38 
application annually and shall actively seek regional and national brand sponsors for Sister 39 
Bay events. 40 
 41 
Larsen indicated that he doesn’t like a number of the provisions contained in the 42 
agreement and is concerned that it will expire in one year. (There is potential for the 43 
Village to delineate more expectations when the next agreement is drafted.) He also 44 
believes the SBAA should seriously consider becoming an independent organization again.  45 
 46 
Sally Pfeifer indicated that she believes the agreement has been drafted in an attempt to 47 
clarify that the $50,000 the Village provides to the SBAA on an annual basis is being spent 48 
responsibly. 49 

121



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  May 7, 2015 

- 3 - 

Becky Freundt explained that at one time the SBAA was independent and probably could 1 
become independent again. She also explained the history behind the Village providing 2 
support to the SBAA, and indicated that if the decision is made to become independent 3 
again there are a number of factors which must be taken into consideration.  4 
 5 
At 9:10 A.M. Bittorf indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting. 6 
 7 
Gary Chaudoir indicated that he does not believe the 90 day termination clause provides 8 
enough time for either organization to “get their ducks in a row”. It was the consensus that 9 
Section 1.3 – Termination should be amended to read: 10 
 11 

         “This agreement may be terminated by either party hereto at any time 12 
upon 180 days prior written notice to the other party. If and when the 13 
Village gives notice of termination, all monies due and payable 14 
during the notice period will be deemed to be due and payable 15 
immediately.”  16 

 17 
Hitzeman indicated that she believes a concerted effort should be made to make everyone 18 
aware of the fact that many of the actions the SBAA takes benefit all the residents of the 19 
Village as well as non-profit organizations; not just business owners. Several of the Board 20 
members concurred and indicated that it may be a good idea to ask non-profit 21 
organizations which benefit from the SBAA’s actions to publicly thank the SBAA for its 22 
support. They could also be asked to provide a year-end report describing the community 23 
services they provide.  24 
 25 
At 9:35 A.M. Crowell indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting.   26 
 27 
A motion was made by Bickford, seconded by Zacek that the SBAA recommends that the 28 
Operating Agreement between the Village of Sister Bay and the SBAA which was reviewed 29 
at this meeting be approved on the condition that Section 1.3 – Termination, be amended 30 
in the fashion stated above. 31 
 32 
A roll call vote was taken on the motion, and the Board members voted in the following 33 
fashion: 34 
Bhirdo – Nay; Kane – Nay; Gajda – Aye;  Bickford – Aye; Grasse – Aye; St. Henry – Aye; 35 
Gomoll – Aye; Zacek – Aye; Larsen – Nay; Hitzeman – Nay. 36 
 37 
Motion carried. 38 
 39 
Item No. 10. Discussion regarding the SBAA Spring Social: 40 
Funkhouser is still working on making plans for the Spring Social. Further information will 41 
be provided at the next Board meeting. 42 
 43 
Item No. 11. Discussion regarding outside food and beverage sale for events – Tokens 44 
and wristbanding: 45 
The Marketing Committee has recommended that tokens be utilized for outdoor food and 46 
beverage sales during all festivals and special events which take place in the Village. If 47 
such a system is utilized I.D. wristbands will still be required, but they will also be 48 
purchased with tokens. If the token system is utilized there will be an avenue for the 49 

122



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  May 7, 2015 

- 4 - 

agencies organizing the festivals and special events to realize profits as vendors would be 1 
asked to provide a percentage of their profits to them, but those fees are negotiable. Tara 2 
Gokey, who organizes Taste of Broadway in Green Bay and is a member of the Marketing 3 
Committee, indicated that it has been her experience that charging fees for wrist bands was 4 
not well received at all. The token system has been very well received at Taste of 5 
Broadway. 6 
 7 
Larsen indicated that he believes the token system will be met with resistance from several 8 
local business owners as a number of logistical issues could arise.  9 
 10 
Gajda agreed and indicated that he believes the non-profit organizations will also be 11 
opposed to such a system as they will be losing money if they are required to pay a portion 12 
of their proceeds to festival and event organizers. 13 
 14 
Several of those who were present indicated that they believe “there has to be a better 15 
way” and don’t believe Fall Fest policies and procedures should be changed.  16 
 17 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding the JEM Grant for “Midwest Sunsplash” Marketing: 18 
“Midwest Sunsplash” will be conducted in the Village on August 7 and 8, 2015, and word 19 
has been received that a JEM Grant in the amount of $25,500 has been awarded for that 20 
event!!! Funkhouser did a considerable amount of work on the grant application, and, 21 
therefore, the Village Board has agreed to provide an incentive payment of $250 to the 22 
SBAA. 23 
 24 
At 10:20 A.M. Zacek indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting. 25 
 26 
At 10:24 A.M. Grasse indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting. 27 
 28 
Item No. 11. Discussion regarding festivals and special events: 29 

A.  Sip & Savor/Paddlefest/Goat Parade: 30 
Sip & Savor, Paddlefest and the Goat Parade will be conducted on June 13, 2015. 31 
Advertising has already gone out for Paddlefest, and the organizers of that event 32 
will be flexible as to location. A coaster advertising campaign is being considered 33 
for Sip & Savor/”Midwest Sunsplash”.  A “goat plop” contest will also be 34 
conducted, and a New Belgium bicycle will be awarded to one of the contest 35 
participants. 36 
 37 

B. “Midwest Sunsplash” 38 
Work is ongoing on planning for “Midwest Sunsplash”. 39 
 40 
Funkhouser is suggesting that the SBAA pursue contracting with the Village to be 41 
the sole alcohol purveyor at “Midwest Sunsplash”, and it was the consensus that 42 
this would be a good idea. 43 

 44 
Item No. 12.  Update on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project: 45 
Item No. 13. Update on the Waterfront Park Development Project: 46 
Work is ongoing on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction and Waterfront Park Development 47 
Projects. 48 
 49 

123



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  May 7, 2015 

- 5 - 

Item No. 7. Consider a motion to convene into closed session to discuss or conduct other 1 
specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed 2 
session: 3 
At 10:35 A.M. a motion was made by Kane, seconded by Larsen that the SBAA Board of 4 
Directors convene into closed session to conduct other specified public business, 5 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. A roll call vote was 6 
taken on the motion and the Board members voted in the following fashion: 7 
  Bhirdo – Aye; Kane – Aye; Gajda – Aye;  Bickford – Aye; St. Henry – Aye;  8 
    Gomoll – Aye;  Larsen – Aye; Hitzeman – Aye. 9 
Motion carried. 10 
 11 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session: 12 
At 10:41 A.M. a motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Bickford that the Board 13 
reconvene into Open Session. A roll call vote was taken on that motion, and the Board 14 
members again voted in the following fashion: 15 
  Bhirdo – Aye; Kane – Aye; Gajda – Aye;  Bickford – Aye; St. Henry – Aye;  16 
    Gomoll – Aye;  Larsen – Aye; Hitzeman – Aye. 17 
Motion carried. 18 
 19 
Item No. 9. Consider a motion to take action, if required: 20 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by Bickford that the $250 incentive payment the 21 
SBAA received from the Village for the work done on the “Midwest Sunsplash” grant 22 
application shall be provided to Paige Funkhouser as she did the majority of the work on 23 
that application.  24 
 25 
Funkhouser indicated that Gomoll will be resigning from the SBAA Board of Directors as 26 
he will be retiring, and presented him with a farewell gift. The other Board members 27 
wished Gomoll well and thanked him for all his service to the SBAA. 28 
 29 
The next meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors will be conducted on Thursday, June 4, 30 
2015 at 8:00 A.M. 31 
 32 
Adjournment: 33 
A motion was made by Bhirdo, seconded by St. Henry to adjourn the meeting of the SBAA 34 
Board of Directors at 10:44 A.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 35 
 36 
Respectfully submitted, 37 

 38 
Janal Suppanz, Secretary 39 

124



 WATER, SEWER COLLECTION, AND STORMSEWER 1 

 COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 
Tuesday, May 5, 2015 3 
Sister Bay Fire Station 4 

2258 Mill Road 5 
(Unapproved Version) 6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

The May 5, 2015 meeting of the Utilities Committee was called to order by Committee Chair 10 
Patrick Duffy at 7:30 AM.  11 
 12 
Present: Committee Chair Patrick Duffy, and Member Scott Baker. 13 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson (7:40 AM), Utility Manager Steve Jacobson, 14 
Utility Supervisor Mike Schell, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, and Utility Clerk Martha 15 
Baker.  16 
Also Present:  Fire Chief Chris Hecht and Attorney Randy Nesbitt (via phone). 17 
Absent:  Member Shane Solomon. 18 
 19 
Consider a motion to recess until conclusion of Utilities Committee – (WWTP) meeting 20 
A quorum was not present for the May 5, 2015 meeting of the Wastewater Treatment Plant 21 
Utility Committee meeting.   22 
Absent: Committee members Solomon, Forkert, Sauer, Anderson, and Administrator Kalms. 23 
 24 
Approval of the Agenda:  25 
Motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Baker, to approve the May 5, 2015 agenda as 26 
presented.  Motion carried – all Ayes. 27 
 28 
Approval of the April 14, 2015 meeting minutes: 29 
Motion was made by Baker, seconded by Duffy, to approve the April 14, 2015 minutes as 30 
presented.  Motion carried – all Ayes. 31 
 32 
Public Comments and Correspondence  33 
No comments or correspondence. 34 
 35 
Discussion Items 36 
1.  Administrative Related: 37 
a. Discussion on proposed water tower 38 
Jacobson said he sees three choices regarding the proposed water tower.  One would be to 39 
build the water tower within the next two years.  Another would be to build at a later time and 40 
begin refunding water tower impact fees yearly until the tower is built.  Another would be to 41 
refund all impact fees and reevaluate the water system.  He talked about the CUPAC Study and 42 
spoke briefly about the fire flows and pressure at the northern end of the system.  Jacobson said 43 
there are several large volume customers mentioned in the CUPAC Study that no longer exist 44 
and projections from the study have not been met.  He talked about projections for future 45 

125



development, citing the Garot project, the old ball field project, and the old school house 1 
development.  Jacobson pointed out that the CUPAC Study addresses future pressure and fire 2 
flows needs.   3 
 4 
Village/Town Fire Chief Chris Hecht spoke to the committee regarding fire flows.  Hecht said 5 
his concern is that whatever improvements are made, it needs to be a year-round solution and 6 
not just a peak-time solution.  He said 2000 gallons per minute for three hours would be 7 
needed to satisfy ISO requirements, but he thinks that is an unrealistic goal.  There was 8 
discussion regarding sprinkler systems in buildings.  Hecht told the committee the fire 9 
department can augment hydrant flows directly from the waters of Green Bay.  He said the fire 10 
department has begun using compressed foam which has decreased the need for water flow by 11 
more than half.   12 
 13 
Jacobson said he recommends postponing the building of the water tower until 2019 which 14 
would require refunding approximately $7,000 of impact fees next year.  Jackson talked about 15 
creating a new ordinance regarding water system improvements.  Jacobson suggested 16 
contacting Attorney Nesbitt to answer all questions regarding the existing ordinance and 17 
creating a new ordinance.   18 
 19 
After further discussion Duffy made a motion to recommend to the Village Board to postpone 20 
building a water tower, reevaluate needs, and begin refunding impact fees according to the 21 
schedule provided by Utility Clerk Baker and at the same time create a new ordinance that will 22 
allow collection of impact fees for future water system improvements.  Motion seconded by 23 
Baker.  Motion carried – all Ayes. 24 
 25 
Jacobson told the committee that Liberty Grove Utility District #1 had enacted an ordinance 26 
regarding water tower impact fees at around the same time as the Village.  Liberty Grove will 27 
need to be notified so they can begin to refund impact fees as well.   28 
 29 
Attorney Nesbitt reached the committee by phone and said he would work on amending the 30 
current water tower impact fee ordinance and creating a new water system improvement 31 
ordinance. 32 
 33 
2. Collection System Related 34 
a. New DNR required CMOM draft review for Sister Bay 35 
Baker said he looked at the draft CMOM and approves of what has been submitted.  Jacobson 36 
stated that the CMOM will be a very helpful tool for employees and committee members in the 37 
future.  Jacobson said the County GIS system will also be a helpful tool for mapping.   38 
 39 
Baker made a motion to approve the draft CMOM for adoption, seconded by Duffy.  Motion 40 
carried – all Ayes. 41 
 42 
4. Stormsewer System Related 43 
Jackson said he would like to have discussion in the near future regarding Stormsewer 44 
improvements for Bluffside Road, Maple Road, and the beach side of Mill Road.  Duffy would 45 
like to see the Bay Shore Drive project completed first.  Jackson would like to see a proposal 46 
from R.E. Lee & Associates for the improvement work.   47 

126



 1 
5. Extensions 2 
a. None 3 
 4 
6. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, Official, or Employee: 5 
- Stormsewer improvements for Bluffside Road, Maple Road, and the beach side of Mill Road.   6 
 7 
Adjournment: 8 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Duffy, to adjourn the May 5, 2015 meeting of the 9 
Water, Sewer Collection, and Stormsewer Utilities Committee at 9:00 AM.  Motion carried – all 10 
Ayes. 11 
 12 
Respectfully submitted, 13 
Martha Baker 14 
Utility Clerk 15 
 16 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\utilities\2015\2015_05\050515 water sewer stormwater comm minutes - unapproved version 17 
1.doc Created: 05/13/2015 8:00 AM Printed: 5/14/2015 12:47 PM  18 

127




